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Front cover illustration . The rebuilt mill in The Grov®ark, Carshalton, latterly used
to generate electricity.
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1 INTRODUCTION

This reference manualetails thevaterpowered mils and industrpn the uppereaches
of the River Wandle in the London Borouglof Suttonand Croydon and part of
Mitcham.lIt covers the Carshaltdiream and the Beddington braraftthe Wandletheir
confluence andnie Beddington Corner stretcBome mills or works have been included
where the use of waterpower is not knowndoes mt include the mills on the lower
reache®f the river from Mitcham to Wandswart

Initially powered by water wheel, amy works later usewil or steam engineso
supplement or replace the water whdel.somecasesthe wheels were repladeby
turbinesfor electricity generation.

The mill sites of he River Wandle and itspringfed tributaries are remarkable ftrer
number and variety of uses over the years, but few remains kx@imation from
published and unpublished sources varies from ddtaihel accurate for some mills to
scant, inaccurate or confused for oth&mme mills go almost unrecognised.

Beddington and Wallington are particularly difficult areas to stuyBeddington there

was emparkment and landscaping by the Carew family, with changes to the course of the
river and removal ofmediaevalmills. In Wallington and at Beddington Cornerthe
extensive factory bidings of the calicobleaching and printing ingtry and leather
manufactureare long gone and the sites are noevered by modern factories and
housinglt is possible that some mill sites were located away from the present river course
on defuncsidechannels.

There was &igh level of bankruptciesiguidations and dissolution of partnerships of the

tenants and Bseholders of the various works across all of the indusHigsever, by
meetingtheaur t 6 s condi t i ogiven his centiécatd amch Wfee ot  wa s
continue in business.

Auctionsalenotices inold newspapertist manufacturing plant, procesguipment and
buildings givingsubstancéo what actually toolplacewithin theseworks.

Where information is drawn fro the 18411911 censused, have generally quoted the
censugyear leaving the source implied.

| gathered much information from Google Books. Copyright restrictions have resulted in
this being far less open than it once was and | have been unable to retrace and check
references wich explains the lack of page numbers.

Many of the documentguotedhave been paraphrased at length rather than exactly quoted
so they are not in quotation marks.

This manual i@ work in progressilt is inevitable that there amrrors due to inadequate
daa. It is not always obvious to which mill certain tenants should be ascribece
information will undoubtedly come to light and causeappraisalhowever any errors
are mine.

Derek Bradford



2 HIGH STREET MILL, CARSHALTON

Frontage SLSC. Postcard detail. Postcard detail ¢.1907.

High Street Millstood within the block of foysropertiesat the corner atheHigh Street
and The Squard&he mill frontage laypetween the present Coach and Hopgdsic house
and theWoodmarwine bar(TQ 2802 6448.

Themill was fed by aspringin theHog Pit Pondn Carshalton Parkhe outfall of which
still flows via two culverts.One, the Little Canal ran to the High Street and then
eastwardslong the side of the road to the Westcroft Cavidath drove thamill in the
Grove (lateiGrove Ironworks3). The secondanthrough theHigh Street riil and flowed
into the soutkeastcorner ofLower Town Pndundera brick arch dated 1825

Water extraction fronthe chalk aquifers of the North Downs by Sutton arastESurrey
Water Companyhasr e du c ed t h eso she Hag Ripopdand GratavCanal
springs arenow normally dry. Upper and LoweiTown Pondsnow haveconcretebeds

and duringdry periods aréopped ugo preventhemfrom drying out.

TheancientHog Pit wasprobablya chalk quarrnandhassincebeen used as a mill pond
andlandscapedin 1443 Hogputtewasa field subdivisionn C a r s h aSbuthd-ield s
containing the Hog P{iCars CR.

The mill or engine house existed from at least 1778 until demolition about 1907.
According to a sale notice ihhe Timeon 4 April 1849 the mill was constructed for
grinding corn.



The arliest knownownerwas James Scawgord of the manor whpin 1778 placed his
estates in the hands of trustees to sell. 8w it to William Andrewsin 1785 (SA
2361/1/1).

John Drayton, ¢.1778 to prel1790 (died).

A 19th-centuryabstract of title tahe mill starts withthe 1785 sale to Andrew&A

23611/4). This refers to anessuagebarn stable and yaraccupied byRichard Street
butcher,and the full and free us# the water runninghrough the yard adjoining or near

to the lastmentioned messuaghrough and under the mill or engine house with the
appurtenances adjoining or near unto the last mentionssuage then occupied byhn
Draytoninto the Lower Town Pondncluded were the messuage with its yagatden,

sheds, outhouses and appurtenances near the east end of the churchyard in the tenure or
ocaupation of Thomas Clowserbricklayer, and similarly the essuage etc. of James
Clowser brickmaker.

The messuage with appurtenances occupied by John Dagtamcluded in a mortgage
conveyancedated20 April 1779from James Scaweand his trustees mortgagéal
Richard Rigby(SHCK173/1/3 transcribed by Margaret Cunningham

A plan attached to the 83 saleshows thewaterways connected with Carshalton Park
and Lower Town PondHalf of the water from the Hog Pjgond was to run through a
duct to the Little Canand thence along the High Street to Westcroft and ultimatedy T
Grovemill (later the Grove Iron WorksYhe other half was to continue through the park
to Lower Town Pongbassinghrough theyard andmill or engine housé&heHigh Street
Mill ) (Therewerecovenantgor cleansing the stream and keeping the bamkspair(SA
2361/1/1 K173/1/4)

Draytonwasratedfrom 176683 with no mention of a it and by 1790 Messrs Andrews,

late Drayton, was similarly rated for churchrdda. ayt onds wjptkesumablyas r at ec
on her housan 179Q (A later John Drayton was victualler at the Swafest Streeaind

the GreyhoundPound Stregt

When the Sun Fire Office insured George Barmdstesmith, Carshalton in 1796ther
occupiers listed were Blackgrovesniller, Sarah Draytonand James Clowser
Blackgrovesas not been traced at any other mill so he was presumablyngdinks site.

2.1  Drug grinding mill
George Barnesleaseholder.

The Timeg4 and 25Junel794 announced the sale of the leaseMondayJuly 28 1794
by order ofGeorge Barnégmssigneepf two lots situated in Carshaltofihe following
Lot 1 sounds like High Street Mill.

Capital water mill in complete repair, the water regular all the year, with a pair of
stones, and able to grind and dress from 9 to 10 loads of wheatelerthe fall
sheathed with coppeand a capital wheel (15 feet Byfee) with oak shaft and
cross gudgeons, with dressing houses adjat@nivhole lot let to Mr Cookson
tenant at will at the low rent of £12Blso, Mr White tenant at wi, for night

water 40sA dwelling house let t&arah Draytontenant at will, at £but well

worth £18.The whole of the premises are held under one lease, 42% years
unexpired on MidsummeDday last, sbject to therent of £105 p.a.

This suggests that George Barhetd the main leasentil 1794and his tenants Cookson
and White operated day time amightimerespectivelyThe situation is confused by the



fact that althoughVhite was rated from 1791 until 1794 when the mill became empty and
Batley took over the mill in 1795, Messrs Batley paid Parliamentary Tax on a house and
drug mill in Carshalton in 1793 hedateoverlaps with White

Thomas White, ¢.1791-94.

Robert Hawkisd  voif 1¥9B referredtd h o ma s  Wh ionh tepokthe/fard(8asah
Hawkinsoc cupi ed )Wwhitel wes mabed for amill in October 1793 and

November 1794nd adenant atvill in Junel794was charged rent for nightater of 40

shillingsas noted abov@& his suggests Cooksavas using the mill for the other hdurs.

The mill wasl at e \dtugntlleeingty, in March1795andMr Bat |l ey 6s mi |
Wh i t eCQztgber(rate bookk

Henry Batley and William Aldersey, 17921810(partnership dissolved.

Henry Batley and Samuel Strattodruggists andaltpetre refiners of Seething Lane
dissolved theipartnership on 281arch 1776 andBatley carried on the businegisere
(London Gazette28March1776.

William Aldersey, druggist, insured 6 Seward Street, Goswell StreetSvithFire Office
on 13July1791andon 11Februaryl792William Alderseyand Henry Batleydruggists,
both insuredthat property (MS 11936379/585836nd 384/596693 They were listed
there in 1794s Batley and Alderse¥ent, andin 1808asBatley and Co

The partnershipof Mary Foster Joseph AlderseyWilliam Aldersey and William
Lazonbyforgri ndi ng d yatthebceloummillcadMitchamvas dissolved on 21
Januaryl807 (ondon Gazette24 Januaryl807). William Aldersey drug grinder, then
insured at Homerton, Hackneyon 18 September 1807 (&in Fire Office,
11936/442/806587

Messrs Batley was charged Parliamentary Tax in Carshalton in 1793 for a hodsegand
mill (SA LG15/2]) but White wasalso rated in 179384 which is confusing.Messrs
Batley and Cowas raéd for a mill late Whitein October 1795pn a drug millin
Carshaltorfrom 17961811and in 18084 as Messrs Batley and Clor drug mill and
premises.

William Andrews and Henry Batleywere assessed for land tax in 172810 (rental
£110.

The partnership at Seward Streggbswell Streeand at Carshalton between Henry Batley
and William Alderseydrug grinders and almond pressers under the firm of Batley and
Aldersey wa dissolved on Januaryl810,Batley to continue the business under his own
account London Gzette 30Decembed809. Almonds were ground to a paste and then
pressed within canvas bags in a scregsprito extract the almond oil.

Batley, drug factor, insurelis Seward StregtGoswell Streepremises withSun Fire
Office in 1810 (MS 11936/451/8480R4However, thee extensive premises on lease to
Henry Batley had beeadvertised for sale by auction in 180aqfning Advertiser 31
May 1809.

James Smithand Co, 181%15. (Partnership of Smith and Aitken dissolved1815.

In 181114, James SmitAndCo.wererated on the drug millt waslate Batley in 1811
Land tax was assessed William Andrewsand Smith ad Coduring1812-15 for amill
of rental £115

In 1813,James SmitlandAlexander Aitkenof Carshalton, druggisténsured withSun
Fire Office(MS 11937/1@, Policy No 882662, 7 May 1818n their water drug mill and



kiln therein situate as aforesaid timber and tiled, (E78tck, utensils and machinery
included, (E60R House only near, in tenure of Johnson, private, brick and tiled Y£300
Household goodstc. (£250. House only in Beddington Corner, Hamlet of Wallington,
nearbrick, timber and tiled, (E4Q0TheSunFire Office Policy No 89622410Junel814

MS 11937/1pwasa renewabut with theBeddington Cornelnousecrossed out.

Thepartnershippetween James Smigimd Alexander Aitken of Carshalton, drug grinders
was dssolvedon 1Januaryl815 debtsto James SmitlilLondon GazettelO January
1815.

Alexander Aitken, 181532 (died).

The Sun FireOffice Policy No 905593MS 11937/1105 May 1815 was as per 1813

except in the name of Alexander Aitken t he house now tiomthdi t kenods
mill described as hiwith the Beddingtorhouse omittedThe Sun Fire Office policy No

916493 (MS 11937dated 2QJunel821was identical to the 1815 policy.

Aitken was rated on a house in 1814 anc house and mill in Carshaltbom 181524
(drug mll in 1821). Carshaltorrate books are missing for 182%.

Land taxwas assessed for William Arewsand Aitken in 181618 (rental £11%. Land
tax recorddor 181931 listAndrews (Richard Andrewis 1827-31) asowner andAitken
occupier ofhouse ananill.

n1824, the water running down the street f
opposite MrBradlef s house was to be turned across t
conveying the water from thadrug mill into the Town PondCarsVB).

William Andrewsdiedin possessionf the property in 18282 CC will probate October
1828. His will referred to his mill with its fixtures, rights and appurtenances at Carshalton
in the possession of James Snaittd Alexande(blank)and also his four cottages etc. at
or near or adjoining the said mill.

AlexanderAitken died in1832and was buried in Carshalton on 9 November.

In an advertisement for the premises to be let 8618ey were offered to drug and snuff
grinders and mustard makersanufacturing chemistgpapermakes and grist millers.
They comprisedA water mill, the water being of the purest and clearest descriinan.
water wheel was new, of iron, 5ft widejfidiameter ad 7t fall. Also a dwelling house
and cottagelmmedate possession was to be haAgplication was tavir Aitken on the
premisegMorning Advertiser 10 October 1836 This may have been Richard Aitken
who soon after leased the Beddington Corner drug mill.

2.2 Hook and eye mill

Hooks andmetal loops for fastening clothes anidot-warewere madeWire on drums
wasdrawn and fed into a cutting machine where a specific length was canaibient
into shape around mandrels and guides, thequered or japanned.

Thomas Trotman, c.183842.

Thomas Trotmanccupiedahousemill and premiseg Carshaltonn 183842 (Electoral
Reg andrate bookk In 1841 he wasa hook and ge manufactureliving therewith his
wife and 10 childrenOn 17 Semmber1841 Bayley Symes Andrewmortgagedthe
messuage, nijl4 cottages etenherited from W Andrewso Thomas Cuf{SA 2361/13).

10
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His daughterswere bornin Middlesex (1837, Carshalton(183340) and Newington
(1844).

In 184852, he was hair pin and hook and eye manufacturer at Pitchcombe Mill,
Gloucesteshire(S| at er ®Osect@y).r ou d

An auctionsale noticeby D Davis and Co, auctioneers, 1852 of the machinery and
equipment of Thomas Trotmars | at e hook and eye manufact
Gloucesteshire throws some light on the equipment that may have been used in
Carshaltonlt included14 hook and eye, pin and card cutting machines, 8 foot turning

|l athe and turning tools, drums, driving bez¢
work benches andices.Also two grind stones, stoves and pipes, capital iron oven and

frame. Also long deal tables for packing, beams and scalesvetiting desks, large
shearsyolling machinery for straightening wire, circular saw, spring truck and paper
packing boxse used in the trade

2.3 Flax dressing and spinning mill

The mill wasthenused for fax dressing and hemp spinniriax strawwas pulverised
andthe siky fibreswere extracte@scotching, andthenline (long smooth fireg and tow
(short coarse fibrgsvere separately drawing theibres through tineghacking. These
processes were dusty and hazarddasv was used typically for filling mattresses and
for sackmaking Line waswound and spun for the linen weavers.

George Kinnell, 184348 (bankrupt 1849).

George Kinnelwasa flax spinner at Dunfetline in 1837 (Pigqtin the firm of George
and Thomas Kinnglflax andtow spinnerswhich became bankrupt.

Hewas rated on and occupied thel at Church StreetCarshaltorfHigh Streefin 1843
47 and alsahe mill and house at The Grove, Westcrioftl84445. The 1847 Cardalton
tithe awardmap showed asparcel 336aa house, nil, cottage, garden and buildings,
owner M. Andrews and occupidgseorge CarmelKinnell) on the High Street site

Kinnell was bankrupt by his own petitiam 8Februaryl849.He was of, or formerly of,
Carshalton and Bolton Terrgc&dward Street, Walworthspinner and hearth rug
marufacturer, dealer and chapman.

In 1848 E W Brayley, in hisTopographical History of Surrey e f er r ed héenpp Ki nne
spinning mill of smalpower, property of Mr Andrew&/ol. 4 p. 68)

In 1849Thomas Cuff AndrewBayley Symes Andrew<Esther AnnéAndrewsandJulia
FrancesAndrewssold to &hn Bake a small freehold vaterpowered millwith attached
dwelling house with 10 roomS other tenements and garden ground adjoining with about
£103 annual incomelose to the parish church.

The mill premises weradvertised for salky auctionby Messrs Blaken 25April 1849
The premisedatterly used for flax dressingyere vacated by Mr Kinell at Christmas
1848 andverepresently to handl'he water supply was constant

The lots were

A capital ironbreastshotwhee| 14ft. 6in. diameterand machinery worked bysdream
with a fall of about 8 feet, issuing from Hog Pibnd, and spacious whiseswith
upper floors.The mill and warehouses veeof brick and timberThe machinery was
constructed principally fogrinding con using4 HPwatea power.

11



The treestory dwdling house with paved yard comnunicating with the mill premises
(SA 48/4/16 andrhe Times4 April 1849.

2.4  Corn or flour mill

Daniel Beck 1851.

Daniel Beck maser miller,employedwo menaccording to the 1851 census
Caleb Sawyer 185155 (insolvent debto.

In 1851Caleb Sawyer of Battersémasel the corn mill, house, garden and premjsse
DanielBed, for 19 yeargSA 2361/1/9. Included was use of the stream running through
the premises, the water wheel, machinery, fixtures and gear water wheel14ft.
diameter with iron floats, shaft and hammer blocks and brassedeteripatergate to
thewheel with iron shaft and crosaidle and racks and pinior3t wheel and wallower

and upright shaft with bearing crosses and bridgings atepur wheel on upright shaft

to drive two pair of corn stones, one pair of Peak stones with nuts, spindle, box damsel,
lighter iron, hurst, ctb hoop, house, shoe, hopper, spout and meal trough comlete.
crown wheel on upright shaft to drive the bolting mill and sack tackle with a nut working
into crown wheel with an iron shaft and two riggers on same shaft, bearingscansse
timber bearers completa@.bolting machine (but not the boltertee whi ch i)s t he ten
shoe, hoppettail screen completéd sack hoisting tacklevith rigger roll, bridging bar

and brassesA crab with wheel and pinion and roll and rope for hiog sacksetc. A
wastewategate in mill, corn and meal bins in the roof of the nilIsluice gate irthe

Park to let the water off occasionallytensilsetc.loose inthemill.

John Blakaliedin 1852 In 1853,the Carshalton Parktreanwas sufficient to drive &
HP wheel at Savy e rfl@aus mill at 104ft 9in. above Tinity High Water Mark
(Braithwaitep. 192).

A leaseof 12 August 1854rom William JohnBlake to Caleb Sawyerconcerned the

dwelling house with 1ifl, garden anddjoiningpremisesand thewvater wheel, machinery,

fixtures and gean thepremiseslateoccupied by Daniel Beck and now Ggpleb Sawyer

with use of the streamunning through theremisesetc. Also use of the water wheel,

machinery, fixtureand geauponthepr e mi ses ¢é f or JanélastTpear s fro
paper, colour, cleanse, whitewaestd tar when required. f  a s bvankskatl lie built

for the manufacture of bread for sale it shall be considered a fixed trade imp(&&ent

2361/1/9 and 10

Sawyerwas summonetb appear before théourt for Relief of Insolvent Debtors on 14
Januaryl856(London Gazette28 Decembed 855.

Henry Brooks, ¢.1861- ¢.1884.

Henry Brooksvasmiller and bakeatHigh StreeMills from 186184. He employed John
Knighton, journeyman baker, in 186Part of the flour mill was fitted up as aagged
school where on three evenings a weean average of forty receivdtee instruction
under the management of.\Blundell (newspaper articlabout30 Septembed 870in
Peatlingunder Ragged Schqol

William Saunders, ¢.188790.
William Saundersvaswatermiller and baker.188790 (ocal directoriek

12



Francis D. Saunders,189097.

FrancisD. Saunderswas miller and baker ih890:97 (Pile.
Albert E. Baker, 18981900.

Albert Bakerwasmiller in 18981900

The mill was unoccupiedfrom 1901 Old postcards show a weathleoarded frontage
with athreestorey brick building at the reakn 80 year lease of the mill sitedescribed

as a freehold building plétwas put up for auction on 14 September 1905 SA 48/5/14).
It probably failed to find a buyer as tlieeeholdwas offered for sale by auction 22
February 1906 (SA8/5/15) and agaian 25 July 1907 (SA 48/5/16). The mill site had a
19ft. frontage and @ft. 9in. rear to roadway

The site became CarshaltBark Dairy by 1910calledSelby Dairyin the 1911 census

13



3 WATER TOWER, WEST STREET, CARSHALTON

PUMF, WELL AND
SECTION WATER WHEEL BEHIND

TheGradell* listedWater Towel(TQ 2771 6448lies onWest Street within the grounds

of Carshalton House, t h elt gpntasmedearnwiter @heel, Phi | om
pump, water tank, cold batbrangeryand saloonlt suppliedwater to the house and

originally & least one fountain in the garden. Tirek wheetpit and the lower half of a
breastshotwater wheelsurvive butthe pump is missingThe wheelhas beerturned

through 180 degredsr public viewingand new paddles fitteay theFriends of the Water

Tower.

The springfed lake wet of the Water Towewas themill pond andornamental garden
feature.Normally dry, the springs are onlgctive after a period of heavy rainfadind
discharge under West Street into the Festival Walk canal and thence idfapireTown
Pond The building is managed voluntarily by The Friemd<Carshaltonwater Tower
and TheCarshalton Water Tower amtistoric GardenTrustandis open to the public.

The Arundelmap, ¢ 1621showsan earlier, differentlayout of thelake at the springead
(Skelton 2016).

The Water Towey commissioned by Sir John Fellowes Director of the South Sea
Company is typicalof Sir John Vanbrugh styleand wasither desigad byhim (hehad
Carshalton family connectionsr more likely by Henry Joynesis clerk of worksat
Blenheimto whom payments were madée lead water pipes are said to have had a date
of 1717 on them (Jones 198054).

In 1817, Hassell saithe wderworks in these grounds suppliedery part of the house

with water. On the top 6this buildingis a large reservoir, which is supplied by pumps,
worked with cranks, from the spring beneattnence it is coducted by a pipe laid on

from the reservoir, down to the grounds, and through the canal to the house, the upper
apartments of which, not being so high as the reservoir, the water, naturally holding its
level, supplies it with abundance.

John Griscomvisiting the house of W. F. Reaoldsin 1818 or 1819gave theollowing

d e s c r i pdautifol trgnspérent lake, within the enclosure, pours its stream against a
wheel, which forces the water to a reservoir on the top of a tower, whence the healthful
current is conveyed by pipes to the house, and distdbiat ts different apartments.
(Griscom 1823 vol. 2, p. 237).

The 1839Carsalton House sale particuladescribe the wellconstructed water works
and large reservoir lined with lead (containing several thousand gdilonswhich the

14



top of the mansion and all the offices, stald&s were copiously supplied with water.
Every part of the mansion, offices, yagtt. wassupplied with soft and spring water by
means of capacious tanks and cisterns and various {@&HEs174/1/13).

InDr Charles Barraft s  (18668Y) three oldfashionedoowerful plunge pumpsgere
driven by the water wheelhe waterwasbrought tlough a pipe from a springcross

the pondo a well beneath the tower apdmped ito thelarge leade cistern at the top

of the tower The ground floor was parti@rangery, partlypumping station with a 14 foot
wheel to drive the machinery and partly a singular marble and Dutch tiled bath with a
dressing roonfPeatlingunderCarshalton House Water Hojse
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4 UPPER MILL, MILL LANE, CARSHALTON

&
‘ﬁffo" b 2 5 ‘ Sy
2 Carshalton g

262

Upper Mill, Paper Mill, Lower Mill and Mill in the From te1867 O.S. map.
Grove from thel847 Tithe Apportionment map.

Upper Mill (TQ 27% 6472) lay adjacent to the grounds of The Grou®0 metes
downstream of the Leoni Bridge andwer TownPond Its water supply came frothe
springfed Upperand Lower Town Pondslus half the flow from the Hog P®ond?

The old flour milland mill house wereemolished c.1896I'he presentate Victorian
chalet style buildingvaserected to house an electricity generator to supply The Grove
mansion house and Stone Court

4.1 The owners

Upper Mill is probablysited on onear the site of Town Mill or Chertsey Mill, probably

onthesi t e of the mil | DonesdaBookenty (252). Tieeitl s hal t ono
was worth 35s and was in a skiblding belonging to Westmawhich may have becoen

the submanor of Stone Courof which the mill wagossibly later a part

The Abbots of Chertsey

In 11991200 Martin Abbot of Chertseypurchased from John Comywne mill in
Carshalton for 4 marks sterling. The same mill was afterwards purchased by
Bartholomew Abbot, from William Ambesasfor 10 marks of silver(Chertseyitem

1048.

! The beds of Upper and Lower Town Ponds and the canal to Upper Mill were concreted over in the 1960s
as a condition for allowing increased water extraction in the Carshalton area by the themSii®istrict

Water CompanyAt times of low rainfall and spring flow, treated water is pumped into Upper Pond in front

of Honeywood Museum to maintain flow and amenity value.
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By aChertseycharer of about 130@\dam le Galeof Carshalton conveyed to Rogi
Leybounéone messuage and appurtenances in O0Ke
of Richard the Goldsmitand the mill of the lord Abbot of Chertsand the street which

is called Mullestrete and the wateurse. This appears to be between Mill Lane and the
watercousei presumablyVandlei suggesting that the Chertsey Mill was on or near the

site of Upper Mill. (Chertseitem 1059.

In 1346 he Abbot of Chertsey was responsible for eiv@ning (presumably flooding
the highway at Town Mill antbr flooding the roadit Tounmull in 1359 (Cai8R). The
water ofthemill may have been backed up until it flooded North Street ivitheity of
Stone Courbr the present Ponds.

In 1322 William Ambesagkt,and Joamis wifegranted al | t he free mul t ur
of our c o matnthe Abinds énifl anl Cardhalton taJohn RutherwykAbbot of
Chertseyand the convent of the sanf€hertseyitem 1050. It appears that Ambesas was

for some reason exempt from mills tolls and was gifting this exemption btheat.

In theearly14th century the Abbot of Chertsmade a new mill at Carshalton. This could
be the reconstruction ofi¢ building or the addition ainaher pair of stone (Chertsey
item 554).

The Gaynesfordfamily

In the late 15th and the 16th century the mandtone Courtand the mill belonged to
the Gaynesfordamily.

In 1482, the highway between Nicholas Gaynesiosd Mi | | and Chvasnber | a
defective owing tdranches overhanging and sunk€arsCR).

In 1555,RobertGaynesforcbwned a watermill and leased a swannery belonging to it to
Nicholas BurtonVCH v. 4p. 189. Robet Gaynesfordeld freely of the lord by charter

a capital messuage called Stonecourte, a water mill with divers closes and other parcels
of arable land lying in the commoielids by military service etc. Hliedin 1558leaving

his wife Joanwith a life interestHis ddest son and heir, John Gaynesfdtd/ears old,
heldfor life (Cars CR.

In 15756, FrancisGaynesfordyounger son of Henrgnd uncle of Johrwas possessed
of a manor house, t wo water mil | s, a bar
(Carshalton Records vol. 2. p. 529 quot@igancery Proc, séf, bundle 214, No 26

John Gaynesford, ¢.159091.

In 157879.Francis Medcalffeclerk, complained of dispossession of the two water mills
and What manoés MNayaedforgShamemanslidarlowhmd Chorydon(Cars
CR)

JohnGaynesfordsold his estate with the three mills to Humphrey Rogers59091
(Cars CR).

2The Wandle used to be called the Lodeburne, or variants of it and it mightbu pposed t hat Rog
refers to the river. However, heds Leybourne, that is of Leybourne, which is more likely to be a village
than a water course. There is a Leybourne in Kent.
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Humphrey Rogers 159093

The sale by JohrGaynesfordor £1000 to Humphrey Rogeas Beddington of property
probably related t&tone Cour{(SA acc 849 box, bundlel, 12 February1590-91).
Rogersdiedseized of the milin 1593(VCH. v. 4 p. 183.

Francis Rogers -1626.
Edward Burrish, 16261635(died).

Edward Burrishpurchagd Stone Courfrom Francis Rogerfor £1,800 on 1Junel626.
The millwasoccupied by William Killick(SA acc 849, box 1, bunddocument 2.

Burrish, citizen and mercer of Londowas recorded in the Court Rolls in 1628.Stone
Court, hewas buried 1&eptembet 635 GeorgeBurrishwashis son and heiGars PR.

George Burrish, 163584 (died).

George Burrislwasnamed inthe Court Rolls for 16434 when he diecHis son Edward
washis heir.

Edward Burrish , 168493 (sold).

On 8/9 Februaryl1l693 EdwardBurrish and Dorothyhis wife sold Stone Courto John
Cator(SA acc 849box 2, bundle 18, itensand?2). Cator was related by marriage to the
Scawens of Carshaltorafk.

John Cator, Owner 16931726(died).

The manor of Stone Couwst Gaynesford s Pl ace, the est,wdse of
advertised to be sold on TIdly 1726 at the High Court @hancery as a peremptory sale
(London Gazette5 July 1726. After several attempts it was finally sold in 1789
Catorés brother to Thomas Scawen.

Lady Lanesborough 17171721 (died).

Lady Frances Sackvillelaughter of Richard, fifth Earl @orset, married George Lane

1st Viscount Lanesborougif Ireland, becoming the Rt. Hon. Lady Frances Viscountess
LanesboroughBy 1717 she was the Dowager Viscount&xs.1112 August1717, John
Catormortgagecherthe manor of Stone Coust Gaynesford Place&S@ acc 849 bx 5,

bundle 34, item Yl This included three water corn mills under one roofe with
appurtenances, the streame moat, and pond appertaining or said to with the mills and suit
and service appertaining to the miled the messuage or tenement, barnes, stable,
carthouses and other outhouses, yardes and appurtenances to the mills adjoining inclosed
within certain walls lately built by John Catand now or late in the occupation of
William or Elizabeth PopeViscountesd.anesborouglhliedin Januaryl721.

Thomas Scawenl72-74 and James Scawerl77479.

Thomas nephew of Sir William Scawesnd nephew by marriage John Catorbought
Stone Courtincludingthe mill. He diedin Februaryl774, his son Jamé&sheriting.

Richard Rigby, 177982.

On 20 April 17799ames Scawesnd trusteemortgaged the Stone Cowdtate including
the mill to he Rt. Hon. Richard Righyf Mistley Hall, EsseXSHCK173/1/3, transribed
by M Cunningham
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John Hilbert, 17821818(died).

On 20April 1782S ¢ a w e n 6 ssoldto Johs HikesvEWandsworththree water corn
mills under one rooffeatlingPapers under High Street Millncluded were a messuage,
stable, carthouse and outhouses adfaaadbelonging to the millsoccupied by John
Hilbert or his tenant.

William Tate, 181834 (died).

John Hilberd svill (dated 19 May 1818PCC probate 1 Feb. 181@ft Upper Mill in
trust to his nephew William Tatef ChelseaThe will of Hannah Tateof Pocklington
Yorks, proved April 1817)isted Mary DewsberrandFrancisand William Tateas her
children (Prerogative andxchequer Courts of York Probate Index via Find My Past
Hannah Hillert, sister of John Hilbertmarried William Tateon 6 Novemberl766 at
Leconfield, Yorks

Thewater corn millwas advertised for sale on 18 MBy19by order of the executors of
John Hilbert deceasean lease expiring at Midsummer 1822e Times24 April 1819.
Tate leased the mill to William Charringtdor 31Y4 years at £800 p.a. expiring
midsummer 1853.

There is deaseand release for a mortgage betw@étiam Tateof Smith Street, Chelsea
and MaryDewsberryof Pocklington widow, dated 182¢oncerning the water corn mill
in occupation of William Charringt@dns e x §SAWPH4/4)r s .

Francis Tateand Mary Dewsberry, 1834 38.

William Tatedied 28 May 1834 leavingis real estate to Francis Takes brother, and

Mary Dewslery, his sister, equally as tenants in commbiis personal estate was
insufficient tocover thefuneral expenses, debts and other legacies and as a result there
was an aton in the Court ofChancerybetween James Howedind William Mackle
plaintiffs, andFrancis Tateand Mary DewsberrydefendantsAs a result of this the real
estate was valued by James William Faarad it was put for sale by Chancery decree in
1838 (SA P4/47 andlhe Times1 Januaryl838.

William Newton, 183880 (died).

The auction took place dt6 April 1838and the mill was bought By/illiam Newtonfor
£8,000 The transaction was confirmed byeaseand release dd and10 August 1838
(SA P4/47. The machinery was as described in the 1827 mortgage.

William Newtondiedin Wandsworthin 1880(Free BMD.

The Time®n 27Februaryl886 advertisethe freehold sale of the mill and contents with
vacant possession on March1886.

Mrs Aurelia Cator , 188794 (died).

In August 1887He trusteesfahe lateWilliam Newtonsold the freehold land with the
water and steam corn mill and other buildings known as Upper Mill for £4,000 to Mrs
Aurelia Cato. (SA P4/512). She already owned ThHerove estate and the mill was
incorporated into it.

She died in March 189%ree BMD).
Sir Samuel Barrow, (18951923.
In 1895Sir Samuel Barrow.P., tanner and leather facti@ased the property from Mrs

A

Catorod6és heirs. He bought the freehold i
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Carshalton Council and the London Borough of Sutton,19241 presentday.

TheGrovedid not reachts reserve price when offered for shieMessrs. Knight, Frank
and Rutleyon 23 May 1923but the following year was acquireg Carshalton Council
which created’he Grove Parkand later council offices itne mansion house

4.2 Town Mill or Chertsey Mill tenants

The names of a number of Carshalton millersstly extracted from the Carshalton Court

Rolls, are knownfor the period 1359557. Many were accused of taking excess
mulcture, a toll. Howeverit is uncertainwhether they worked at Town Mill (later
Gaynesford Miljor Chamber | ai n 0)s litidiwayldowhstieaniltidsee Mi | |
mills are shown on the c.26 Arundel estate map.

Town Mill probablydated from Domesday times and Middle Mill from at least 1235.
Millers who cannot be associated witparticularmill have been listed in Appendsd.
The known millers for Town Mill are listed here.

William Miller , 1449.Miller at Towmyll.

Henry Gaynesford 153746. Miller and ale brewer. In 1546, Henry Gaynesford and
Katharine, his wife, held of the manor of Carshalton the manor of Stone @euctpital
messuage in which they livednd a watermill. Henry lately died tb46 and his wife,
Katharine, holds by survivorship. Katharine appears to have married Richard Thomas by
1548. Henry demised the mansion house of Stone Court to Walter Lafob8€dyears.

Richard Bolton. 153742. Common miller. fie servant of Henry Gaynesforalso a
miller.

Richard Thomas. In 1548, Katharine Gaynesfqravidow, wasthe wife of Richard
Thomaswho in 155052 was described as a gentleman, miller and brédesappears to
have succeeded @®aynesford Mill.In 1559, Katlarine was widow, late wife of Richard
Thomas.

Humphrey Rogersof Beddington. Died ¢.1592.

Edmund Morrant .The sale by JohrGaynesfordfor £1,000 to Humphrey Rogers of
Beddington of property was probably for Stone C¢d8& acc 849 box 1, bundleitem
2). Thisincludedthewatermill in Carshalton in which are ®ills, namely 2wheat mills
and a malt mill now in the tenure of said Edmund MbotrAlso the stream, moaind
pond belonging to theills and all manner of suand servicdelonging to thenills. Also

all the messuage or tenement, garden andl, yeith the waste ground belonging to the
mill.

John Huntley of Beddington.
Richard Wonham, 1593.

A lease for 18 years diMarch1593betweenJohn Huntley of Beddigton and Margaret
his wife andRichard Wonham late of Ewel] miller, concerneda mill ground in
Carshaltorcontaining two wheat iths and a new mill with a moatishing rights reserved
to the HuntleysAlso a tenement, garden, More Meadow andr@saland inNVestMeade
field, also in Carshalton (SHC G4%2).

Thec.1621 Arundel estate map sheMill, Mid dle Mill and Lower Mill equatingo:
1) Upper Mill with a buildingshown either side of the river at the mill site.
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2) A mill approximately 90 yards (80 mety@ipstream (weybf Butter Hill corner
3) The Shepley mill site at the confluence.

A declarationon 27 April 1627 betweenRobert Austin citizen and clotiworker of
London andSir HenryBurton of Carshalton concerned in part a messuage, a garden, an
orchard,two barns, two stables arttiree water nis under one roof in Carshalton
(Antiquaries Listno. 58.

William Killick , ¢.1626.

WhenEdward Burristpurchased Stone Cowmd appurtenances from Francis Roders
£1,800 on 1Junel626,the mll wasoccupied by William Killick (SA acc 849box 1,
bundle2, item 2).

Christopher Pope c.1654

Christopher Popenmiller, married Elizabeth Mathevirs April 1654 (CarsPR). The mill
was describeds late in the occupation of William Killicknd now of Christopher Pope
in a deed of July 1660(SA acc 849 box 1,undle 8.

In 1664, Christopher Pop&as assessed on twoahnths, was this Upper M#l(Hearth
Tax 1664 p. 12

George Popec.1687.

A marriage licencallegationwas dated8 July 1687 for George Popef Carshalton,
miller, bachelor, about 27 yeat® Mary Waters spinster, about 25 yeaa$ St Matin
Outwich London Ancestry.

Widow Pope,c.1693.

In 1693, John Catgrurchased from Edward Burrishree water mills under one roof in
occupation of William Killickand nowor late of widow PopeMary Pope,Georg® s
widow), (SA acc 849 box 2, bundle 18, item 2

William and Elizabeth Pope ¢.170617.

A corn mill wasin the possession of William Pojre 1706 (SA acc 84%ox 3, bundle

27). Three watemills wereformerly inthe possession diVilliam Killick deceased and

after of Widow Popé 1709(SA acc 849 box 4, bundle 30, itefn @n 17 Octoberl707,

William Popewasr at ed 5d. on B@areMBgeds mi | | house

It was still in the occupatiowilliam or Elizabeth Popen 11-12 August1717whenJohn
Catormortgaged Stone Couxi Lady Lanesboroug{SA acc 84%ox 5, bundle 33.

Christopher Pope ¢.173864 (died).

In 1782 the mill wasformerly occupied bywilliam and Elizabeth Popeafterwards
Christgpher Popeglate of George Popelt is unclear why Christopher and George were
both rated on a mill at the same time.

Scawen Papers for 1729 refer to Stone Casarthe new, brick messuage or mansion

house formerly of John Catarhere Scawen now resides etc. and ponds, moats, streams

and peculiar piscaries from the Churchyard d er St one Br ietdSA t o Po
84944/2).

Christopher Popemiller, insured the mill for £400vith Hand in Hand Insurance
(MS867456, 28August1738 Policy No 65073. On a timber building being a cornilim
with granaries oveion the east sides of a far@arg in the parisbf Carshalton being near
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Scawens Esq. standing clear of other buidhis own possessio.he renewal IS
867467, 8August1749 was as in 1738 bugtatedcorn mill, house with granaries over
the sameRenewals were made (MS 8679) on 7 August1752 and 1 August1759 for
Christopher Popéor £400.Christopherwas ratedn 174451 but themill not stated
William Popedied 11Junel757, aged 60 andshwife Elizabeth died 18ugust1761.

Christopher Popemealmarof Carshaltonwaswitness toan allegation for a marriage
licence on 2 Octoberl757 for Elizabeth Pop@& mariiage licence allegatiowasdated
16 Novemberl1759 for the marriageat Carshaltorof William Pope miller, aboa 4
weeksto Sarah Smithabale 4 weekshoth of Carshalton

GeorgePopewas rated on a house andlnm 1757%63. Christopher Poperasalsorated
for a house ad mill in 176164 when he die@CCprob 16 July 1764).

The Arundel and Tithemap alignments of Mill Lane diffeNot long before 1717 the
present Mill Lane was laid out acdlled Pell Mell or Pall Mall and the foenroadwas
caledthe Old Mill Way enclosed.

George Popel76479.

GeorgePopewas rated ohouse and it in 176467.The Hand in Hanthsurance Policy
No 65073 was renewed (MS 8674/105%,August1766 by George Popef Carshalton,

miller, £400 m a timber building being a cornilirwith granaries overon the east sides
of a farm yard in Carshaltomear Scawen starding clear near theduse of Thomas
ScawerEsg. in his own possession.

George Popaniller, he became grisonerfor debti n K Benagh ®#ssonformerly of
Calaisin Franceand late ofCarshaltor(London Gazette21 April 1772.

Ro ¢ q u e,&.sl766hgwed the corn mill in Pall Mall.
John Hilbert, owner 17821818(died), occupierc.17791801.

John Hilbertof Wandsworth miller, insured on 3Quly 1779 with $in Fire Office (MS
11936/276, Policy No 41719his house, kitchen and shop adjacent in Carshalton in the
tenure of Pope, miller, not exceeding £300, waten mill and stable adjacent neldot
exceethg £1,000.All brick, timber and tiledTotal £1,300.

Pope was assessed for land tax in 1&&d Hilbert in 1782.

On 20April 1782the Scawen trustee®ld to John Hilberof Wandsworththreewater
cornmills under one roofPeatling under High Street Millincluded were a messuage,
stable, carthouse and outhouses adjacent and belonging to thélsdlgith liberty to
ingress to the Hog PRond and into the gardens of theansion house to cleanse the
stream of water running through these gardens from the Lower Townt® dmel mills.
Formerly in the occupation of Williamnd Elizabeth Popafterwards Christopher Pope
late of George Popend now of John Hilbeudr his tenant.

In 1782Hilbert commissionedohn Smeatoto design a new mill with an overshot wheel
and a breast wheel driving four pairs of stones within two Portland stheelpits
(Skemptoril981p. 255).The drawings for this are in the possession of the Royal Society.

Hilbert, miller, insuredhis house, kitchen and shop adjacent ingBatton in the tenure
of Pope, niler, timber and tiled not exceeding £300, and the water cdingoing gears
and stables and warehouses adjoining each other near bricky tambetiled not
exceeding £2000 withud Fire Office (MS 11936306, Policy No 467293 dated 18
Novemberl782.
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Beeston Longlate Pope, was ratddovemberl 782 Hilbert was rated for a ithin 1782-
1800

Edwards(p. 24)wrotec.1789 ofHilberto s | ar g e @& gentael dnléng thousevi t h
adjoining,lately new builtHilbert was raed for the mill in 17821800.In 1801heor the
occupier was rated.and tax charges for 29anuaryl1799 included water corn mills,
house, garden, millgnds and 8 acres landaocupation of John Hilbertdedied in1818.

William Charrington . 1801-21 (died) and James Grey, 180227 (died).

William Charringto® s f at her was ,Y¥enan g Beddihft@enywho died t
in 1795.Robert Lintonof Mertonwva s an executor of George
1795).William married Mary Lintorat Merbn on 1680ctoberl 794 andlied6 November
1821 (PCC probate 28 Jan 18&29ving themill leaseto his son William(who died 21
Februaryl832(PCC probate 7 Mayand for whomWilliam Newtonwas an executdr
whose brothewas Robert LintorCharrington(died 1880).

Messrs Charrington and Qw/illiam CharringtonandJamesGray) were rated for a mill
for 180121 John Hilbertof Wandsworthinsured withthe Sun Fire Officeon 16
Novemberl807(Policy No 810798, MS 11937/y6n a water corn mill, stables, wagon
house and offices all communicatiag Carshalton, occupied by Charrington and Co,
millers, imber and tiled no kiln therein not exceedingQE®.

0
0

Fourpairs of mill stones and two fttdiameterbreastshot waterwheelexisted in 1808
(DH Jones.

By order of the executors of Joktilbert, Winstanley and Sonadvertised the saley
auctionon 18 May1819of thewater corn mill at @rshaltorwith an uninterrupted suppl

of waterdriving 5 pairs of stones by one 18 fdareastshotand one6 foa overshot
wheels with bins for upwards of @8 quarters of corn, ranges of stabling, sheds, kiln and
loft etc.together with alwelling, large gardenstc.in occupation of Messi€harrington
andGray, on lease expiringt Midsummer 1822ZThe Moning Post 19April 1819). The

sale washoweverwithdrawn Public Ledger and Daily Advertiset5 May 1819

Tate leased the mill to William Charringtdor 31% years at £3400 p.a. expiring
midsummer 1853William Charringtondied 260ctoberl821and James&ray died 21
December827.

Willi am Charrington, 182232 (died).
The mill was rated in 18224 onCharrington and Co

In 1827William Tate of Smith Street, Chelsea,itllesex mortgaged the property for
£6,800 and interest tdary Dewsberryof Pocklington Yorkshire, widow. The property

was occupied byVilliam Charringtod s e x aml wds saidgo consist thiree water

corn mills under one rodevidently an out of date descriptio@) messuage, stable, eart
house and other outhouses, yards and appurtenances to the mill adjoining, formerly
enclosed by a brick wadind d@so the Upper Town Pondhalf the water arisig and coming

into the Hog Pipond in pariof James Scawéns  (agam kut of datewhich runs into

the Lower Town Pondnd thence to the mil{SA P4/49.

William Charringtondied on 21Februaryl832
Robert Linton Charrington, 1832-80 (died).

Robert L Charrigton, corn miller, was atCarshaltonin 183234 (Pigo} and Lower
Mitcham in 183239,
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The Timeg31 Januaryl838 announced that as a resul€hancerycourt caséetween
James Howeland William Mackle plaintiffs, and Francis Tatend Mary Dewsberry
defendantghere would be aale of freehold estates oivtarch1838 including d@reehold

water corn mill known as Carshalton Millhe nill has been in great part rebuilt by the
presentlessee in the most substantial manner and fitted with four pair French stones,
dressing machines and all the driving gear and apparatus, nearly new. A detached family
residence, counting house, brbouse, chaisbouse, cart and wagon shed, stabling for
10 horses, drying kilns and extensive garddre present famylhasbeenthetenants for
nearly a centuryL.et on lease to Mr Charrington for an unexpired term of 16 years, subject
to a cleanetrental of £400 p.aThe prgerties were radvertisedor peremptory sale on

April 26th (London Standard22March1838.

On 9 and10 August1838(SA P4/47 James Howeland William Mackle executors of
T at e 0 togethar withFrancis Tateand Mary Dewserry sold the mill toWilliam
Newtonof Wandsworth meatmanand Richard Dawesf Throgmorton Street London.

Thewater corn millwasbuilt on substantial foundations at the head of one of the principal
sources of the River Waledwith the water wheel 16ft diameter # 20ins wide and all
the cast iron and other wheethaftand ringsand floats and the oak stargorks and
fixtures, appendageand dressig and other machinery to thmill and mill wheé
belongingand a kiln for dying corn and loft attachedhere wasa range of stabling for

8 cart horses with lofts ovararge open shed for tilted and other wagfanload or shoot

at the mill,a timber and slate building including chaise house, cart lodghed for
far mer s 6 [Istablesvihsthrea stahdselosed. The water caméom Upper
Town Pond half thewater of the Hog Pi#ond,a spring irthe park belonging to the lgrd
anda spring in a gardenThe whole was in the occupation of the executors of William
Charringtonfor the remainder of a term of 31% years expiring muser 1853 at rent

of £400 p.a.

Mill inventory : (from SA P4/4&ranscribed by MCunninghamWandle Bulletin No 19,
1991).

Stone floor. 4 pair four feet French stones in iron bound frames moffpers and screens

on cast iron frames, wood shoots and supports, cupboard with folding doors and shelves,
mahogany one flap desk, cast iron circular upright shaft with brass and iron box and a
pair of plummer block$bearing for a shdft brass bearing8 feet long, cast iron bevel
wheel fited and steel keydtBinsdiameter, 4 inch cast iron circular horizontal shaft with
brass and iron box, and a pair of plummer blocks, brass bearings 8 feet long, cast iron
bevel wheel fitted and steel key# 8ins dameter, 4 inch cast iron circular horizontal
shaft turned 18 long, iron bevel wheelfi 6ins diameter, 3 iron rigger wheel# Bins
diameter, two cast iron standards to carry shaft fitted with regulating screws, bolts and
nuts.Two pair of plummer bldcs and brasses, two 4Y2 inch straps, one 4 inch strap, cast
iron rigger wheel 5 feet diameter, two motion rigger wheels 4 feet diameter.

Flour dressing machine in wood case with wire cylinder, wrought iron spindle and crank,
two brass rigger wheels, plummeélocks, lines, hopper and apparatus, wrought iron
circular shaft 15 feet longfaree pair plummer blocks and brasse® brass rigger wheels

and supportBolting cloth dressing mill on wood base with wrought iron spindle and
crank rigger wheelpair of plummer blocks and brasses, wigpper and apparatusix
dressing cloths, 8 dressing brushes, 12 sack shoots, the board inclosure tthbin w
uprights.Smut machine with wire cylinder in wood casénd fan, rigger wheels and
apparatus, cast inospare bevel wheels.
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Ground floor: Wire jumping ma&hine in wood case, 3 bran and pollarmstand uprights,

the front sides and ends of 4 meal bins, 4 sack jiggers, 4 wood shoots, cast iron water
wheels & wide, 18t diameter, wrought iron bucket andwod starts, cast iron shaftfi8

long, two pair plummer blocks with brass bearings, stoutlamd water wheel gate

with cast iron rack and pinion wheels, the rack and pinion to water gate and supports.
Regulating machine with spur and pinion wheel fatev gate, cast iron spur wheel 6 feet
diameter on cast iron shaft fitted with keys, plummer blocks and apparatus, iron spur
wheel with keys on iron shaft, plummer blocks and brasses, iron bevel wheel fitted with
keys 3t 6ins diameter, cast iron spwheel to drive ®nes fitted with keys, bolts and nuts

10ft 6ins diameter, iron upright shaft with step fitted with bolts and rititer®g, the brick
foundation and support to carry water wheel and machines, 4 castpuonwhels to

drive gones on cast iron upright shaft with brass step in wrought iron frames, cast iron
regulating rack with pinion standard and apparatus, 6 strong cast iron colfirorgy/

and 4 bearers fittedith iron bolts and nuts, the boarded inclosoremichinery and water
wheel with doorsThe boarded inclosure to flour bin and support load flap and chains,
two square framed lamps with iron work.

Yard: Lead pump in wood case and pipe.

Mi | | Hous e, mi | | f or e ma n 6 $heskh waredescribednin | | y a
detail.

A water wheel 16 feet diameteroft 10ins width with 4 cast iron rings and arms to ditto

as per pland8 iron floats, 192 leak starts including the necessary bolts and nuts securing
and fixing the floats to the starts, sidianks or plates fastened to the wall between the
ends of the floats and the wall, and 32 iron keyhang the \ater wheel rings on the
shaft.A cast ironwater wheel shaft 9 inches square with two tulmesfingsand a square

on the end to hang the spuheel onAlso two iron plummer blocks withrasses, bolts,

nuts, set screws and folding keys under the braséss cast iron plates on the walls
receiving the plummer blocks with the necessary bolts and nuts fixing the plates to the
masonry.

An elm gae to thewater wheel and an oak cap over difitso two cast iron staple posts

and a cast iron breast plate with necessary bolts and nuts fixing the same to the masonry,
including all the spindles, wheels, pinions, raakdlers, iron carriages, brassémlts,

ratchet wheels, catches, handlet,, necessary to raise and fall thate nachinery to

drive four pair of ®onesA cast iron spur tooth wheel (hung on the end of the water wheel
shaf) of 72 cogs, 6% inches wide, 3% inch pitcht, B/ ins diameterA cast iron spur

tooth wheellhung on the second laying shadt 40 cogs, 3% inchgsitch, cogs 6% ins

wide, 3t 5 and three eiglht insdiameterA second cast iron laying shaft 7 inchesa®g

with two turned bearing®lso plummer blocks, brasses, bolts, nuts and cast iron plates
on the wallswith two bolts and nuts to fix ditto to the walls.cast iron bevel tooth pit

wheel of 127 cogs, 3 inches pitéinches wide, 10 feet 1 inch diameteith 8 arms in

ditto the socket 13 inches dedpcast iron beveWallower wheel of 46 cogs, 3 inches

pitch and 6% inches wide, 3 feet 7 and seven eighths inches diameter to be hung on the
upright shaftA cast iron tooth spur wheel of 189 cogsghes pitch 5 % inches wide

with 8 arms hung on the upright shadt.cast iron spupinions each geared with 36
hornbeam cogs 2 inches pitch 6 %2 inches wide working in the spur wheel, each pinion 23
inches diameter bored to fit the stone spinddeison spindles for thetsnes with cones

on ditto to receive the pinions, the spindles &tbrned at their lengthlThe above
diameters of the wheels are all taken at the pitch lines of the cogs, all the wheels are turned
on the &ces and edges of the same, @haon cogs are pitched and trimmele wheels
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hung on their resptive shafts with iron keys and the pinions bored to fit the spindles
the dimensions of the rings of shaft to be turned all the length of gao@st iron step
block with a turned steprass with set screws, bolts and C to support the foot of the
upright shaft bolted strongly down to the masonry receiving the foot of the upright shatft.
Also two plummer blocks and brassegh caps, bolts, nuts and oak framing receiving
the said plummeblocks belonging to the two lengths of upright shaft.

Five pair of French stones each 4 feet diameter with 5 cast iron boxes fitted into the bed
stones, and three sliding brasses in each box bored to fit the necks of the spindles, and 5
sets of centre iranfitted complete to the spindles and runner stoheast iron columns

with flinches and bolts to ditto fixed with bolts to the masonry, and a strong oak hurst
frame 15 inches deep by 10 inches thaekrying the 5 pair oftenes fitted on top of the

iron columns, with the necessary bolts and rAiso 5 cast iron bridge trees bolted to the

6 cast iron columns with turned sliding step brasses and cast iron step lxoells
receiving the brasse#\lso adjusting screws to ditto with the necessary imvrers,

wheels, pinions, spindlebrasses, handles, and apparatus to raise the brasisesaer

stone perpendicular.

Five sets of racks, pinions, ratchets, spindles and apparatus, iron carriages, and C., to raise
the stone pinionabove the spur wheebgs.5 cast iron double curbs to receive the bevel?
stones with adjusting screws, bolts, nuts, and C., and C., as pe5s plancircular curbs

to cover the cast iron curbs on the stone floor.

Fivemill hoops round the stones with hoppers, ladders, sdaessels, beaters, feed pins,
and C., and C., to ditté. meal troughs to the 5 pairs of stones.

Dressing machinery.Two cast iron bevel crown wheels each 5 &t three eighths of

an inchdiameter, geared with 95 hornbeam cogs 4 % inches wide, 2 inches pitch, the
faces and edges of the wheels turned and hung on the uprighCsieaftast iron bevel
turned, pinion pitched and trimmed working on the crown wheel, the pinion 37 cogs, 5
incheswide, one foot 11 and five eighths diameter bored to fit the sl@fis.cast iron

lying shaft (as per the plad4 feet long turned all the length of sar@&e pair casron
frames with slidingbrasses in ditto bored fitting the lying shaftdso risirg screws,
wheels, pinions, spindlebandles, bolts and apparatus for raising the bevel pinion from
the Lower to the Upper Crown wheel for reversing the motidon& cast iron grooved
riggers, one 5 feet 6 inches diameter, and the other 4 ifegtés dianeter turned all over

to receive a cat gut band, and bored to fit the lying sBafting with case, rigger spindle

and beaters to ditto for dressing flour and 3 sack tacRleast iron turned strap riggers
each joggling screen to ditto, 2 feet 6 incdesmeter, 5% inches wide, hung on one of
the lying shaftsTwo cast iron strap riggetsirned, each 3 feet 6 inches diameter, 5%
inches widewith two elm boardsalso ironspindlesprasses, iron carriages, pulsegnd
frames to tighten the strapsth the necessary levers, sheaves, frameicg

R. L. Charrington miller, occupiedandwas proprietor othe corn millcalled Carshalton

Mill from 1838until his death a1 19 August1880 (rate books and directones

Frederick Brownsmithmiller, in 184181, wasmanager from 187&ndwas foremarat
| at e Char rwhampegueath@d£108inilChar ngt ondés. wi Il |l in 1880

The 1847 Catslton tithe awardhowed William Newtoras owner and Charrington as

occupier of parcel 277house, flour mill, outbuildings and garde,(t 4p acres, parcel

278- yard, @ 0r 15p acres and parcel 348Jpper TownPond Oa 3r 20p acresBrayley

in 185L mentioned theflour mill, with 5 pairs of stones, bought by Mr Newton of
Wandsworth(vol. 4 p. 68) In 1853 Braithwaite(p. 192)referred toMr Char r i ngt on o6 s
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flour mill of 24 HP standingt 107 fee4%4 inches above sea level witie spillwaybeside
the wheel.

The lease to Charrington was renewed on 1 March 1853 from William NésvRwobert

Linton Charrington. An agreement dated 27 February 1869 extended the lease for 7 years
from 4 January 1874Charrington died on 18ugust1880 andhe trustees of his will
surrendered the lease by an agreement datéthy@ 88l (SA P4/48).

James Bristow 1881-86.
James Bristowmiller in 187181, initially worked for Charrington.

On 22 June 1881 Bristow leased the indm Sarah NewtoyRichard Daweand William
Newton Dunnthe executors of William Newténs W5A P4/9). The lease included
the following inventory:

Top Floor. Two 24 inch exhausters by Smith, wooden shoots from stones@oden

shoot to exhaust roorthe matchboar@énclosure to exhaust roonft.8x 7t. x 7ft 6in.

with door, and the enclosure aboveftLBin. x 7t. at base and averagk.®in. high. The

deal boarded enclosure to refuse bin from dressiaghime 4t. 6in. x average . deep

and 5t. high. A middlings elevator with wooldox shoot$in. x 4in. x 51ft. run, iron head

and bottom, wood framing leather band, webbing band and wood buckets and gut driving
rope,and on gound floor, wood hopper and shdaim dressingmachine, wood elevator

from same madtne with wood shoots 6%in. x 5%x.62t. wood head and bottom, tin
buckets and leather stripin. tin piping to the various bins, top abdttam driving pullies

and gut line wood shute toixing bn 7ft. deep by averagesih. x 16in.

Stone Floor.5 pairs of 4 feet Frenchubr Sones with spindles, wood cases, hoppers,
damsel feed, 4 screws, 5 lengths wood shoots for exhaust iron hursts, onefteBgth 4
wood shoot @in. x 10in., 6 lengths borshooting average 3#a. x 2%in. inside and 8ft
length, ditto 9ft6in. long. Silk dressing machine averagk. 8liameter, 2#. 3in. long on
wrought iron spindle, spur driving gedmon aeeper 2§. long, driving pulley and wood
enclosure to silk wootkeder driving motion with wrought iron shaft, 4 line wheels, one
hanger and plummer block and 5 short linEse driving motion for exhaust consisj

of 1%2in. wrought iron shaffft. long, two hangers with brasses, t@io. riggers Zt. 6in.
diameterOne9in. line wheel and one guide pulley, and one line wheel on main ghaft 2
diameter.One line wheel on mairhaft 14in. diameter for driving lbur elevator.One
ditto on main shia 16 inches diameter to drive grindstone and chafffec. Two small
driving motions to drive grindstone and chefftter consisting of two lirspindles &.
long. Two hangers, two bearings and 3 line wheal§yeproof smutting machine and
gear.The counihg house enclosure.

Ground Floor. Fivewood spouts fromik dressing machine 2tl 6in. run 5%zin x 4%zin.
One pumper for @ssing machine 10 x 1ft. 2%%in x 10ft. 2in. deep, with iron wire in 4
sheets, crank and step, wood enclosure under ditto 3t., 6ft. x 1ft. 9in. 14 sack lines
and hooksThe iron framing to one pair ofanes consisting of two cast iron columns.
One flanged driving rigge3ft. 4in. diametergin. face on bright wrought iron shaft, with
step brass bushed and cast iron crossbray, and raising and lowering geatightéming
pulley 12in. diameter with set screws and shaft, two hangers and twd be@amsThe
drawing gear to the gairs of stones consisting ofVil sheet &. 8in. diameterbin. tooth,
2Yv4n. pitch. A ditto on vertical shaft same size, 7in cast iron vertical shaf6®itlong
tapered at end to fit into cast iron step brass lwhgHemmer block bolted to timber beam
forming head, 5intooth morticed spur whedlin. pitched, . diameter, cast iron sole
plate and brick foundation, 5 cast iron pinions to drive the stofte|id. diameter on
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wrought iron spindlessteps brass Ished and set screw lighter geared with wheels, levers
and screwscast iron framing ®. 3in. square and 4 cast iron columns, cast iron bottom
framing same size as top and a flanged riggedABft diameter 5 meal troughs eacht5

8in x 2ft. on average 8. deep.The boarded enclosure to gearirfty Sin. x 8ft. 10in. x
average &. high. Boarded partition next sack room ft1x 6ft. 10in. with one door.

Engine House A 12 HP high and low pressure beam engine witimg@ high pressure

cylinder and Bin. low pressure cylinder,f2 6in. spoke pistons and rods, cross heads,

parallel motioncast iron beam X0 long. cast iron fly wheel I2 diameter, cast iron

crank, wrought iron crank shaft, plummer block and wall least iron spur wheelf@

dia,6in.tooth, 2%inpi t ch, and f oundat Castiromboyticedsple nt wor t h ¢
wheel 4t. diameter, 5%intooth, 2%:in pitch on5in. cast iron shaft to mill 8. long, 3

plummer blocks and brasses, 9 spanners.

Boiler House.Wrought iron vertical multitubular steam duler 4ft. 4in. diameter, 18.

high by Horton, Son and Kendrickwo manholes and covers, pressure gauge, water

gauge.Two blow off cocksTwo safetyalves, damperand frane.mi t hé6s patent dar
furnace door, fire and bearing bars and brick seatidgtoking toolsWrought iron egg

end boiler, &. 6in. diameter, 18. 6in. long, manhole and covedoublesafety valve,

starting valve, water feed pipe and cock, two blow off cocks and pipes, brick seating with

stone coping, furnace door and frame, fire bars and danipeossparepistons and rods

for engire. 6in. wrought iron vice and deal bencft.8ong. Wentwortl® mercurial steam

gauge.Wood pastry bins, flour and cobins as fittedLeather bands, gas fittings, two

York lamps, me grindstone in shed and chefitter in loft.

Bristow waslisted assteam and water milleén 188284 (directories3.
Bristowds tenancy ew4s68d on 25 April 1886 (SA

The auction saleby Debenham, Tewson and @y order of the trustees of William

Newtonof thefreehold olUpperMill with vacant possessiavas advertisetbr 16 March

1886butit finally sold on 11August1887.Threestorey milthousesverefitted with ten

pairs of French stones, half driven byl @ft. breastshot wheel fi. 10in. wide and the

remainder by a 12 HP high and lggwessure Wentwortbeamengine with a 4t. 4in.

wrought iron vertical multtubular steam boiler I3 high, and a wought ironeggend

boiler: also a bolting mill, silk dressing machineft28in. long, jumper, fireproof

smutting machine, elevators and other gear, stabling for eight cart horses, nag stabling,

l of t s, goo chougear dh omf fil eepsforemandés house,
etc., frontage 358 and are&a 36p.

The mill wasleasedto Bristow at £330 p.aexpiring ladyday 1886 when possession
would be giver(London Standardl3March1886).
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4.3 Electricity generating plant

Upper Mill wasrebuilt as an electricity generat@004 view.Photo by D BBradford.

Mrs Aurelia Cator , 188794 (died).

Richard Dawesnd William NewtonDunn, trustees, sold the corn mill and premises to
Mrs Aurelia Catoron 11 August1887for £4,000 (SA P4/512). Aureliawasthe elderly
widow of the Rev. WAB Catowho had been Rector of Carshalton. She asagalthy
woman who owned both Stone Coartd The GroveThe Ordnance Survey mapows
that by 1895 d<he had demolished the old corn mill and erected the existing timber
framed Alpine style buildingvhich still standsThis housed an electricity generator to
provide a private supply for both the Grove and Stone Court houses. latitevals built
about 1887 which seems likely it was using cuttingedge technology. The filament
light bulb had only been invented in 1881 by Joseph Swan of Newcastle on Tyne.

Sir Samuel Barrow. -1924.

In 1894 The Grove estate, lnding the mill, was leased to Sir Samuel Barravieather
merchant, who acquired the freehold in 1903. In 1923 Barrovivleadrs. Knight, Frank
and Rutleyput the estate up for sal8urrey Mirror, 12 January 1923No buyer was
found andit was purchased by Carshalt&DC in 1924to createThe Grove Parlas a
public amenity.

The electricity plant: Water wheel powered.

At Upper Mill the waterwheel was retained from the old corn mill. Thas Vecated in

the north-westernwheelpit and was covered by the building. The wheel waxbably
connected to two generators through gearing and leather belts as shown in the drawing.
One generatois likely to haveserved The Grove, the other Stone Colmrteffect there

were two separate supply systeimane for each house. Thisade the system simpler to
construct as the technology of sharing electricity supplies had not been fully developed
in the 1880s. Only one generator could be run at a time but this did not matter as the
generators charged lead acid batteries in the nafl hese could supply the houses at
any time and gave a steady voltagenportant to avoid lamp flicker. The sole use for
electricity was lightingas electric heating and gadgets were not introduced for many
years.

The18% OS map (revisetl89495) shows the mill as aiklectric Light Works.
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Reconstruction of the watevheel powered electricity plant.

The mill around 1900 with the water wheel running.
Notice the sunflower finial on the mill roof is very
similar to the one on East Lodge, Beddingt®ark
which was built in 1877 to the designs of Joseph Clarke
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